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          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Good morning,

          3  ladies and gentlemen. My name is Simcha Felder. I'm

          4  the Chair of the Committee on Governmental

          5  Operations. I'm joined by my colleague, Council

          6  Member Joseph Addabbo.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Good morning.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Good morning. I

          9  would also like to acknowledge the staff from the

         10  Committee that diligently prepared today's hearing.

         11                 To my left is DeNora Getachew,

         12  Counsel to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

         13  To my right, walking, is Israel Rodriguez, the

         14  Policy Analyst to the Committee, and also to my left

         15  is my legislative aid, Michael Cassatano.

         16                 Today the Committee will be

         17  conducting an oversight hearing analyzing the My

         18  Neighborhood Statistics component of the Mayor's

         19  Management Report, which is only available on line.

         20                 Since 1977, the New York City Charter

         21  required that the Mayor report twice a year to the

         22  public and to the Council on the service goals of

         23  each City agency, the actual performance of each

         24  City agency and the management efficiency in

         25  achieving each agency's goals.
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          2                 The Preliminary Mayor's Management

          3  Report is usually issued in late January or early

          4  February, and the Mayor's Management Report, or MMR,

          5  is usually issued in September.

          6                 The purpose of the PMMR, which we

          7  said was the Preliminary Mayor's Management Report,

          8  and MMR, is to monitor the responsiveness of City

          9  government and to assist the City in making

         10  improvements where needed.

         11                 The MMR is an integral part of the

         12  budget process, especially as the Council negotiates

         13  the budget and considers what agencies have

         14  accomplished or produced with the resources

         15  allocated and how that affects budget proposals.

         16                 The MMR, which includes the general

         17  listing of the City agency policies and objectives,

         18  broad data about agency resources and an abundance

         19  of performance statistics is also intended to serve

         20  as the City's principle strategic planning document

         21  and to measure the efficiency of City agencies.

         22                 The Mayor's Office of Operations is

         23  charged with preparing the MMR. It contains updated

         24  information for the entire fiscal year, including

         25  tangible agency performance data.
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          2                 The Charter requires that the MMR

          3  include a review of the implementation of the

          4  statement of needs required by the Charter and also

          5  contains specific criteria for each City agency.

          6                 To provide some historical

          7  perspective on the evolution of the MMR since Fiscal

          8  Year 1990, when it was first implemented, the PMMR

          9  and the MMR have undergone substantial changes to

         10  increase the scope of information covered and the

         11  document's usability.

         12                 Specifically, in 2002 Mayor Bloomberg

         13  and his Administration attempted to make the PMMR

         14  and the MMR more user-friendly by alerting the

         15  format -- by altering, I'm sorry, the format of the

         16  documents.

         17                 In addition to the statistics

         18  contained in the MMR, the Administration developed

         19  the My Neighborhood Statistics as an on-line

         20  resource to provide City residents with locally

         21  mapped statistics about how City agencies are

         22  performing or delivering services in their

         23  neighborhoods.

         24                 In order to assess these statistics,

         25  a constituent can visit the MNS website and insert a
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          2  street address or intersection and receive

          3  year-to-year neighborhood and Citywide comparisons

          4  for agency performance data, as well as

          5  month-to-month and Citywide comparisons for select

          6  services requested through the 3-1-1 Citizen Service

          7  Center.

          8                 The purposes of today's hearings are

          9  to examine the changes to the MMR, with specific

         10  focus on the My Neighborhood Statistics, and suggest

         11  recommendations for improving the methods used to

         12  present and publicize the existence of the MMR and

         13  the MNS and improve the substance of the information

         14  contained in both documents.

         15                 Before we begin today's formal

         16  hearing, I'd like to emphasize that it's my policy

         17  as Chair of this Committee to ensure that the

         18  beginnings begin on time, and therefore, it is my

         19  rule that only those individuals that sign up to

         20  testify within the first 15 minutes of the hearing

         21  will be permitted to testify. So, I would ask the

         22  Sergeant-At-Arms to note that.

         23                 Additionally, I would ask the

         24  witnesses to refrain from repeating points made by

         25  previous witnesses. If someone has already made the
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          2  point that you wish to make, it would be okay if you

          3  just said I agree with what so and so said and then

          4  make any additional comments.

          5                 I would like to invite the first

          6  witness, Mr. Jeffrey Kay from the Mayor's Office of

          7  Operations, to come forward. Thank you.

          8                 MR. KAY: Good morning. My name is

          9  Jeff Kay. I'm the Director of the Mayor's Office of

         10  Operations. Thanks for the opportunity to testify

         11  today about My Neighborhood Statistics.

         12                 I hope to use today's testimony to

         13  give you an overview of what MNS offers, to describe

         14  how it came about, including the factors affecting

         15  the information shown in MNS, and also to put the

         16  system in the context of some of the other on-line

         17  tools that we have that are available, those that we

         18  are still working on, that the City is using to help

         19  communities and the public know about service

         20  delivery and related issues in their own areas.

         21                 My Neighborhood Statistics is

         22  accessed through NYC.gov, which is the City's

         23  official website. It's also seen by anyone who looks

         24  on-line from the MMR. The representative screens for

         25  My Neighborhood Statistics are included. I think I
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          2  have handed them out. If not, I'll make sure someone

          3  gets them. And basically the tool presents annual

          4  breakdowns of 51 key MMR indicators by local service

          5  districts, either community boards, police precincts

          6  or school regions.

          7                 Data is also presented for seven

          8  frequent inquiries logged by the 3-1-1 customer

          9  service center, and data shown in year-to-year

         10  comparisons for each district.

         11                 Now, as I sort of went through this

         12  testimony this week, I realized that MNS only shows

         13  about six or seven 3-1-1 data. And as I'll talk

         14  later on, we have another report elsewhere that

         15  shows all 3-1-1 data. So, you know by next week we

         16  should change MNS to include every 3-1-1 data that

         17  we have by community district to ensure that you

         18  don't have to go to multiple places to get the

         19  information.

         20                 My Neighborhood Statistics is

         21  organized to let users select their neighborhood of

         22  interest by entering a street address or

         23  intersection. Having started with one neighborhood,

         24  the user is free to move around the map to any

         25  neighborhood throughout the City and review the
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          2  performance data for each one.

          3                 Color shaded maps are also allowed

          4  for easy comparisons of highs and lows in different

          5  neighborhoods.

          6                 The features of MNS were developed to

          7  give users flexible access to different information,

          8  and to encourage an understanding and comparative

          9  analysis of the different statistics.

         10                 Users can search for performance

         11  information by theme, groupings or by word search.

         12  Word searchers look for statistics, names or key

         13  words that have been associated with the statistics,

         14  and return results in a single customized page.

         15                 The definitions for individual

         16  statistics are available by simply clicking on the

         17  statistic game. MNS data can be saved and opened in

         18  different spread sheet programs, you can download it

         19  and you can use it in many different forums.

         20                 MNS exists because the MMR users told

         21  us that they wanted it. They first went live in

         22  conjunction with the release of the '02 MMR, and at

         23  the start of the Administration, the Mayor directed

         24  the Office of Operations to reform and streamline

         25  the MMR so they could most effectively serve its
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          2  original purpose, a public report card on the

          3  performance of City government.

          4                 A central part of this reform is a

          5  detailed user survey conducted during spring of '02,

          6  administered through a combination of interviews and

          7  mailed survey responses.

          8                 The surveys address the three main

          9  areas, the usefulness of existing MMR, key questions

         10  about the future of the MMR, and user's own

         11  recommendations about what should be added to,

         12  deleted or modified in the report.

         13                 The responses were collected by many

         14  different stakeholders and respondents and put

         15  together.

         16                 When MNS was launched in September of

         17  '02, the executive summary of the MMR was used to

         18  alert MMR users to the availability of this new

         19  on-line tool. In fact, for a couple of years after

         20  that, we have also sent down notices to the

         21  community boards, letting them know that this

         22  information is available and is being used.

         23                 Currently, during 2007, there has

         24  been an average of over 3,000 visits a month to the

         25  MNS home page, totalling over 31,000 visits through
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          2  October 28th.

          3                 When we say hit it's to the first

          4  page, it's not all the successive hits, so in fact

          5  we think that there are over 3,000 visits a month to

          6  the MNS website.

          7                 We believe that the introduction of

          8  MNS has substantially advanced the accountability on

          9  a local level and represents a true innovation in

         10  performance reporting. While many local government

         11  websites at the City, County and State level, for

         12  various neighborhood level information on-line, our

         13  review of on-line resources indicated that nothing

         14  as comparable to MNS exists elsewhere in the United

         15  States, in terms of detail and flexible access to

         16  performance specific information it affords.

         17                 There are a number of different

         18  indicators, there's 58 indicators currently broken

         19  down by district in MNS. They are chosen by the

         20  Office of Operations working with the agencies and

         21  based on those surveys. They represent important

         22  data, data that the agencies have on a local level

         23  and data that, in fact, is easy to put up on an

         24  annual basis, as well as those that are extremely

         25  important.
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          2                 They have 14 different agencies

          3  within MNS. The greatest number of indicators come

          4  from three agencies, Education, Police and Health.

          5  Other agencies with MNS indicators include Fire,

          6  Sanitation, Parks, Environmental Protection,

          7  Buildings, Transportation, Consumer Affairs, LPC,

          8  HPD, ACS and HRA.

          9                 In the period since we lost MNS, the

         10  City introduced a major new avenue for citizens to

         11  participate directly in improving their communities,

         12  and that's 3-1-1, the customer service center.

         13                 Subsequently, the Council passed and

         14  the Mayor signed Local Law 47, which requires

         15  monthly reports to the City Council, the Public

         16  Advocate, community boards and the public, on all

         17  calls made to 3-1-1. We also published that on our

         18  website, and as I mentioned earlier, when I noticed

         19  MNS only takes a snapshot of that, we're going to

         20  change that. So, I just wanted to remind you that

         21  that information is available, and over 70,000 of

         22  these services are logged once a month, and each

         23  month community boards by boroughs and City Council

         24  districts are provided to you and the public about

         25  those 3-1-1 calls.
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          2                 I also want to mention something else

          3  that we're working on about the local communities,

          4  it's our new Scout Program. The Mayor has asked for

          5  us to go out there and not only just wait for

          6  incident calls and complaints on 3-1-1, but we're

          7  actually searching every single City street. So, we

          8  have a team of inspectors that travel around the

          9  entire City once a month. Every single City street

         10  will be targeted. They have these little blackberry

         11  hand-holds, which they have 3-1-1 incidents togged

         12  right into it. We've completed our first full six

         13  weeks I think now. And from a reporting standpoint,

         14  within the next six months, we're going to be also

         15  putting that on line. So you will be able to see on

         16  a map, on our website, how many 3-1-1 or scout logs

         17  were in for your particular community district.

         18  You'll be able to see how many pot holes were logged

         19  by our inspector stand force and hopefully we will

         20  be able to pinpoint exactly where they are so the

         21  community will be able to say, hey, that pothole is

         22  still there, or that puddle is not still there.

         23                 And, so, really we have a lot of

         24  information that we're trying to streamline and one

         25  report that everyone can use. And we're working on

                                                            14

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  that and should be able to do that within the next

          3  five or six months.

          4                 At this point, you know, there is

          5  some additional information within the testimony. If

          6  you have any questions, I'll be happy to answer

          7  them.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Council Member

          9  Addabbo.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Mr. Kay,

         11  thank you very much for your time here today and the

         12  work that you've done on the issue, in the

         13  ever-changing process. And again, expanding 3-1-1

         14  there I think would be helpful as well.

         15                 The information on the MMR and the

         16  MNS, it's for everyone, correct?

         17                 MR. KAY: Absolutely.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: But we also

         19  have to be mindful that not everyone has access to

         20  the Internet.

         21                 MR. KAY: Correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Many seniors

         23  I come in contact with don't have access to the

         24  Internet. So, what is the Administration doing, or

         25  what suggestions do you have? Because this is useful
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          2  information, and I'm sure they'd be interested in

          3  it, what suggestions do you have to get the

          4  information to those who don't have access to the

          5  Internet?

          6                 MR. KAY: We can certainly explore

          7  working with the community boards and getting a

          8  print document.

          9                 You know, the MNS right now is done

         10  at the MMR, so it's really only updated that once a

         11  year. But the Local Law 47 is updated once a month,

         12  and I believe we sent print documents to the

         13  community board. If not, we can send it

         14  electronically to the community board and have them

         15  make it available on paper.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Yes, Mr. Kay,

         17  that's fine. If we could guide those who don't have

         18  access to the Internet to either their local Council

         19  office or the community board.

         20                 MR. KAY: Sure.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Or even a

         22  phone call. I'm not sure if someone calls 3-1-1 with

         23  their address and they have a question, can they get

         24  the information from the MMR or the MNS that way?

         25  But if we can again guide our residents to a certain
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          2  place, again, community board, Council office, I'll

          3  work with you on that.

          4                 MR. KAY: Sure. Absolutely.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: So, I

          6  appreciate it.

          7                 Thank you very much. Thank you, Mr.

          8  Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I'm curious about

         10  how this report is connected to the budget that is

         11  prepared, if it is in any way? In terms of what you

         12  report?

         13                 MR. KAY: The MMR and report and

         14  conversation of the budget, we've actually spoken

         15  about it in the past at previous hearings, what

         16  we've done, when we come up with our MMR indicators

         17  and what we have been doing over the last six

         18  months, frankly, probably a little bit longer than

         19  that, is we started relooking at every single MMR

         20  indicator from top to bottom since I've gotten here

         21  over a year ago, and we should be able to reshow

         22  those indicators by the PMMR in February.

         23                 But what we do is we take a look at

         24  how the agencies, what their final outcome should

         25  be. What's the ultimate responsibility of that
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          2  agency, and how are they getting there? We don't

          3  look at it from our perspective from, you know, how

          4  the budget is laid out and given the documentation

          5  of the budget. We wanted to make it a very clear and

          6  simple this is what the agency needs to be held

          7  accountable for, this is how we should measure it.

          8                 There has certainly been some

          9  discussion around having the two documents work

         10  together from a budget perspective and an operations

         11  perspective. My first instinct is to make it

         12  available to the public in a very simple streamlined

         13  manner. I don't work -- you know, the budget is a

         14  large document. Could there be ways to streamline

         15  it? I think you have to talk with the budget office

         16  about that, but that's been my goal, to make it

         17  clear that it's open to the public, easy to use, and

         18  gets right at the heart of what the agencies are

         19  entitled to, they are entitled to provide.

         20                 Now, the question is, should their

         21  budget be reflective of that? We put in the MMR

         22  every agency's budget, how much money they have

         23  committed, and historical analysis. You know, the

         24  budget decisions that need to be made by the agency

         25  commissioners and conversations with the Council,
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          2  you know, the agencies have to know what they strive

          3  for. They know that they're going to be held

          4  accountable. If there are budget decisions that need

          5  to be made, they make that either internally, or if

          6  they need to, they need to come to the Council to

          7  make those budget decisions.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes, having said

          9  that, the MMR presents some measures at the

         10  agency-wide level.

         11                 MR. KAY: Correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: It really doesn't

         13  connect the measure to individual programs to see

         14  whether they're running efficiently or doing what

         15  they're supposed to. So, are there any plans to do

         16  that?

         17                 MR. KAY: You know, I would ask the

         18  question of whether or not an agency, you know,

         19  should an agency spend more money or less money if

         20  something is doing well or not doing well.

         21                 I believe that those are decisions

         22  that the agency commissioners - and if they need

         23  changes to their budget, they come to you for that -

         24  needs to make.

         25                 I don't believe that it matters
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          2  whether there is more money or less money in a

          3  particular budget code, as long as the end result is

          4  something that you, I, and the public are satisfied

          5  with.

          6                 It may take more money, it may take

          7  less money. At the end of the day, they should be

          8  held accountable for that final result. Did they fix

          9  the streets? Were there traffic fatalities? That's

         10  the final outcome.

         11                 How they get there, you know, the

         12  managers need to find the best way to get that done.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So, who decided

         14  what information should be, again, what information

         15  should be included in this My Neighborhood

         16  Statistics?

         17                 MR. KAY: I'll defer to Tony a little

         18  bit, who was there. I was not there when MNS came

         19  up. But I will say, as I mentioned before, we're in

         20  the process of redoing our entire MMR, looking at

         21  all of our indicators from top to bottom. At the

         22  time when they worked on MNS, it was a combination

         23  of what's important, what can be accessed on a local

         24  level by the agencies, what was intended to be shown

         25  as a quality of life indicator at the local agency,
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          2  and that was sort of cobbled together. So, there was

          3  50 to I think 58 indicators now. As we review all of

          4  our indicators, if there is a way to get more local,

          5  the better information we can get out of our

          6  agencies, the better information we can request and

          7  require out of our agencies at a local level, the

          8  better.

          9                 We also have to be cognizant of what

         10  it takes to get it at the local level, do we have it

         11  at the local level, or if that matters.

         12                 You know, before I came to Operations

         13  and I was looking to, I was moving, and I said, you

         14  know, where am I going to find the information? You

         15  know, interesting enough, you go to MNS and say, all

         16  right, so I look at my community board, this makes

         17  sense, I get information on what's missing. I think

         18  that's the type of thing that, you know, we need to

         19  step back when we redo these things and say, okay,

         20  if you are new to the area, or you want to know

         21  what's going on in the area, is this enough

         22  information?

         23                 If we can get it on a local level, we

         24  will.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes. So, what was
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          2  the answer to my question?

          3                 MR. KAY: How did we arrive at working

          4  groups with Operations, work groups with the

          5  agencies to come up with the most important data

          6  that they can get in a reasonable time on a

          7  reasonable basis on the local districts with the

          8  agencies.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Now, it seems

         10  clear that you're eager to present statistics

         11  whether they're good or bad. You know, I'm going

         12  through some of the example you have, some is good

         13  news, some is bad news. But you want people to know

         14  very clearly what is going on in the neighborhoods.

         15                 Having said that, why don't you list

         16  the number of summonses that are issued, for

         17  example, by the Police Department, by the Sanitation

         18  Department?

         19                 MR. LONGO: There are summons

         20  indicators -- I'm Tony Longo. I work at the Office

         21  of Operations. Now there are not summons indicators

         22  in My Neighborhood Statistics, there are certain

         23  summons-related indicators in the Mayor's Management

         24  Report, some in the printed book, some in the

         25  supplementary tables.
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          2                 In choosing indicators for My

          3  Neighborhood Statistics, I think that basically

          4  agencies were going for the, what were seen as the

          5  primary critical outcome indicators, what affects

          6  quality of life.

          7                 MR. KAY: Sort of interesting, if you

          8  look at Sanitation, so Sanitation would provide

          9  summonses about not having dirty streets or tip

         10  them, everything like that.

         11                 At the end of the day, the summons

         12  actually doesn't make a difference, what you really

         13  want to know is if that street is clean or not. You

         14  want to make sure that that street is clean. You

         15  want to make sure that, you know, there is no

         16  environmental safety hazards, if there is a spike in

         17  summonses or a decreases in summonses, you know, you

         18  want to hold the agency accountable for performance.

         19  I don't believe the level of summons necessarily is

         20  a performance indicator. I think the outcome of that

         21  is.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I understood what

         23  you said, I don't agree with you, because the

         24  agency, certainly summonses that are issued for

         25  Sanitation, summonses issued for what ever it may
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          2  be, whether it's parking violations, whether it's

          3  running through lights, or everything else,

          4  certainly relates to quality of life and safety in a

          5  community.

          6                 You know, so I don't understand, I

          7  don't think it's difficult to have that information,

          8  and if, in fact, and the reason I say that is

          9  because the theory behind, I'll just pick one

         10  example, behind sanitation summonses, actually

         11  encouraging compliance or making the neighborhood

         12  clean, I don't believe that that's true whatsoever.

         13  I don't think that there is any correlation at all

         14  between issuing summonses and getting a neighborhood

         15  clean, period.

         16                 So, it would be very interesting to

         17  see that information, for the average person to be

         18  able to know whether the neighborhood is cleaner,

         19  not cleaner, and whether you're issuing more

         20  summonses or not.

         21                 Maybe it would be wonderful for the

         22  agency to be able to show that that in fact is true.

         23  I don't believe it has anything to do with it. And I

         24  think that that is a quality of life issue. And

         25  quality of life, people being driven nuts, and this
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          2  has nothing to do with your agency, but people are

          3  driven nuts about a variety of things, whether

          4  they're summonses for parking things or for

          5  sanitation or for other things, I think people are

          6  interested in that information. And you have it

          7  handy. You know that. Or I know that. I think it

          8  would be just another feather in your cap to be able

          9  to continue to show how open this Administration has

         10  been in making sure that people throughout the City

         11  know what's going on, that you have nothing to hide.

         12                 MR. KAY: Well, I'll be happy to take

         13  a look at the things in the MMR, the list of summons

         14  that we do actually total, and then we could work on

         15  the list to see if there is anything else you'd like

         16  to add, and then we can work with our agencies to

         17  see how easy we can get that information, and how,

         18  if it fits in, with the revamped indicators that

         19  we're working on in the next PMMR.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do you, for

         21  example, do briefings for elected officials? Not

         22  only in the City Council, but otherwise throughout

         23  the City, for them to know that this information is

         24  available? Because I have the best staff in the City

         25  Council, besides Council Member Addabbo. His staff
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          2  and my staff are of equal skill, stature. But, so,

          3  I'm just telling you that before this morning's

          4  hearing, I didn't know anything about the

          5  statistics.

          6                 Now, I'm not saying that I would have

          7  been able to solve 700 more problems if I had known

          8  about the statistics, but if we don't know about it,

          9  and Council Member Addabbo mentioned about seniors

         10  who don't have any access to Internet, I think that

         11  it would be, it's a wonderful thing, it's a

         12  wonderful too, people should know about it.

         13                 MR. KAY: Any recommendations you have

         14  in getting this information out directly to the

         15  public, I will be more than happy to work with you

         16  and get it done. And that's our goal.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: But a most basic

         18  recommendation would be to coordinate with the

         19  Speaker or the City Council, at a minimum there is a

         20  caucus here on a regular basis before Stated

         21  Meetings to have somebody come in, if that's done, I

         22  don't know if it's done, and, you know, do a

         23  15-minute presentation, show what's available. You

         24  know, you're doing a lot of work and it should be

         25  used. It would be wonderful.
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          2                 So, the average person, if they want

          3  to find this site, how would they do it?

          4                 MR. KAY: At NYC.gov you can go to the

          5  Mayor's Management Report, I believe you can go

          6  right onto My Neighborhood Statistics there.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: But the question

          8  is that this, we talked about elected officials, but

          9  now we're talking about those, the average person

         10  has no idea that this thing exists, and you

         11  mentioned an example about when you were moving, and

         12  what a good tool it was. It would seem that this

         13  would be something that you like want on the top of,

         14  you know, like on Yahoo, you want it on the top like

         15  flashing, blah, blah, blah.

         16                 MR. KAY: As I said, we'll be happy --

         17  any recommendations you have, I'd be happy to look

         18  into it.

         19                 We do keep on NYC.gov, just a few

         20  documents on the main page that never get removed.

         21  The MMR is one of them. So, no matter what happens

         22  on the NYC.gov page, as new things scroll through

         23  and the MMR continues to stay on there, if there is

         24  some way that we can move it up and make it more

         25  prominent, I think it's a great idea.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Who decides what

          3  stays on the front page?

          4                 MR. KAY: You know, I'll have

          5  conversations with DoITT and others to make sure --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I would just say

          7  --

          8                 MR. KAY: It gets moved up? Sure,

          9  absolutely.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I would just say

         11  that the average New Yorker, although I know they

         12  dream about the MMR --

         13                 MR. KAY: As I do.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: They probably

         15  would be much more interested in visiting this and

         16  then you're telling them that they can go to the

         17  other site rather than visiting the Mayor's

         18  Management Report, that looks like, you know, the

         19  classified ads in the newspaper. And then I'm

         20  thinking there may be something on the bottom of the

         21  pot.

         22                 Again, this is a wonderful project.

         23  You're putting in the work, there is no reason that

         24  people shouldn't take advantage of it. You're not

         25  selling it. You're not selling it at all. I don't
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          2  understand why you wouldn't have it at the front?

          3  Why you wouldn't have it at the front.

          4                 Have you ever thought of at the end

          5  of this window, do you have an availability of

          6  people to be able to interact with your agency in

          7  some way if they want to get more information?

          8                 In other words, they see the

          9  statistics that you have, and they have another

         10  question, like let's say the guy is obsessed with

         11  summonses, and he says I want to know how many

         12  summonses are issued in my neighborhood?

         13                 MR. KAY: You know, as we get requests

         14  through 3-1-1, if we collect the information through

         15  My Neighborhood Statistics, the MMR or the

         16  supplementary web tables, if the request comes in,

         17  we'd be more than happy to give that information

         18  out. There is no reason why we would hold it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: No, that wasn't

         20  the question.

         21                 I want to know, again, since you're

         22  doing such a wonderful thing, the punishment for

         23  that is that I get a chance to complain why it's not

         24  perfect.

         25                 MR. KAY: Sure.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So, at the end of

          3  these windows, there should be an option for

          4  somebody for you to say do you have another question

          5  that's not here. Are you looking for some

          6  information that's not available. And if that's so,

          7  can you enter the information. And then, if that's

          8  information that you can easily get for them, fine.

          9  If not, that's just like the 3-1-1 directs those

         10  things, those requests, a variety of requests, you

         11  try and find the right person.

         12                 So, you're allowing them to say give

         13  me this, that or the other thing without having to

         14  go through loops.

         15                 It seems like a natural conclusion,

         16  you know, like when you get on the phone with a

         17  utility or with a credit card company, after you've

         18  finished, is there anything else that I can help you

         19  with. That's what you're saying.

         20                 MR. KAY: We'll see if we can put that

         21  up on the front page right when they go on. If

         22  there's questions, or any options or any additional

         23  information you're provided. Absolutely.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes. You could

         25  either have them submit the questions, if you want.
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          2  If it's a complaint of some sort, you can call --

          3  the 3-1-1- option is great.

          4                 Do you have any statistics on 3-1-1

          5  in people's neighborhoods?

          6                 MR. KAY: Sure. Local Law 47 reports

          7  require us to provide that. So, if someone calls

          8  3-1-1 and says there's a pothole in my neighborhood,

          9  it gets logged into 3-1-1, you, as a Councilman, you

         10  as the public can access that call came in in the

         11  month of January, and has that call been logged out?

         12  Has it been fixed, has it not been fixed?

         13                 So, you have that information. What I

         14  am now trying to do, as I said, is we will now

         15  incorporate that into MNS since it is not, but we

         16  will do that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: The other thing

         18  is that on your statistics, I'm looking at one of

         19  the pages, you choose a community board, right? So,

         20  you will go through the months of the year, then you

         21  have fiscal year-to-date, and percentage of City

         22  total, right?

         23                 MR. KAY: Correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Right?

         25                 MR. KAY: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: But if I wanted

          3  to know whether my neighborhood was doing better

          4  than another neighborhood, what numbers, where is

          5  that?

          6                 MR. LONGO: The quickest way is to go

          7  to the map option.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Say that again,

          9  please?

         10                 MR. LONGO: The quickest way to look

         11  at that sort of comparison is to look at the map

         12  option, which shows the different community boards,

         13  or whatever the appropriate district is, shaded for

         14  ranges of the statistics, and will show which are

         15  higher and which are lower.

         16                 If you do want the exact statistic in

         17  every community board, basically you download the

         18  data.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: But what would it

         20  take for you, for people like myself, that are

         21  slightly colorblind, and reading a map is a little

         22  more difficult, especially since it's all printed in

         23  blue with different shades because it cost money to

         24  do more than a one-color job, two color job.

         25                 So, what would it take for you to
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          2  just have a column, just like you had a column that

          3  says percentage of City total, you can have another

          4  column that would say average for the City of that

          5  amount. So, I'm looking at this page here. As an

          6  example, it says, "Complaints against establishments

          7  violating a smoking law," right?

          8                 MR. LONGO: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I don't know what

         10  those map boxes are supposed to do. That's to click

         11  on, I guess?

         12                 MR. LONGO: That gives you the map.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So, column one

         14  says, "Percentage of City total, right?

         15                 MR. LONGO: Yes, I understand.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes, it would be

         17  easy. In other words, if I was in Community Board 12

         18  --

         19                 MR. KAY: There is probably no reason

         20  why we couldn't add another column. Instead of

         21  clicking a map, you can add a Citywide comparison.

         22  You go directly to the downloaded, where you see

         23  every community board with the actual data. I can't

         24  imagine that would be too difficult for us to

         25  provide.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: This would be

          3  very, again, informative.

          4                 MR. KAY: Sure.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Right next to

          6  "percentage of City total," whether it's on the

          7  right or the left, I would be able to see very

          8  clearly whether my community board is doing better

          9  or worse than the average community board in the

         10  City, and I would like that information. And you

         11  want to give me that information, right?

         12                 MR. LONGO: The idea of a, this is a

         13  quibble, the idea of an average across 59 community

         14  boards may be a little questionable as a statistic,

         15  because they're such different sizes, such different

         16  populations. I see what you're getting at, though,

         17  you want an immediate evaluation of that community

         18  board.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I want to be able

         20  to look -- there is no perfect. All of the

         21  statistics you're showing have problems with it,

         22  there is no question.

         23                 MR. KAY: We'll be able to provide an

         24  additional column with Citywide comparisons.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes, it's a
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          2  simple thing.

          3                 MR. KAY: In addition to the map. It

          4  will be just as easy to look at the raw data.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: It should be

          6  right next to it, so you can see whether there are

          7  more potholes in your -- how does my community board

          8  rate compared to the whole City.

          9                 MR. KAY: No problem.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: That would be

         11  helpful.

         12                 You could as well, back to getting

         13  the information out, I would certainly be happy to

         14  include it in my newsletter, that's paid by your

         15  dollars. So, to include something, if we can get

         16  some material.

         17                 MR. KAY: After this I'll have someone

         18  from staff reach out to your staff and the Speaker's

         19  staff to see if there is some way to get the

         20  information out there. That's more broader and

         21  working together, that would be great.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I would wonder,

         23  even if the reporters in room 9 know anything about

         24  this site.

         25                 Mr. Udosia (phonetic), do you know,
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          2  you don't have to answer the question, but do you

          3  know anything about this site, My Neighborhood

          4  Statistics?

          5                 Frank Udosia knows everything. And he

          6  knows about it, but he's being humble. But I have a

          7  feeling many of his colleagues don't even know it

          8  exists. So, besides the City Council and other

          9  elected officials, it would be good so that

         10  reporters are able to get information and give you

         11  heartache.

         12                 MR. KAY: Sure.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: That's a good

         14  thing.

         15                 Do you receive -- how often is it

         16  updated? This site, how often is it updated?

         17                 MR. KAY: The site is updated with the

         18  MMR.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Once is that?

         20                 MR. KAY: Correct, once. Once a year.

         21  At the final PMMR --

         22                 MR. LONGO: The exception is the 3-1-1

         23  statistics and also in the LL 47 report. Those are

         24  monthly updates.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Council Member
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          2  Addabbo, do you have any other questions?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: May I?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Please.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chair.

          7                 I want to thank your committee for

          8  putting this hearing together and for the work that

          9  they have done on this Committee. I think this

         10  Committee hearing is helpful. Obviously some of the

         11  proposals that have been mentioned today, again, we

         12  look forward to. But aside from these Committee

         13  oversight hearings, do you take surveys or input

         14  from users that may have had similar proposals upon

         15  using this information?

         16                 MR. KAY: Let me tell you that in two

         17  parts. When we put this together, we did put it

         18  together reaching out to stakeholders about what

         19  would be important and what do you want to put on

         20  the website.

         21                 In moving forward, one of the things

         22  that we are starting to embark on, which we will,

         23  you know, we're working on a pilot program and

         24  moving forward, is a Citywide customer satisfaction

         25  survey, one that we'll be announcing more fully. I
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          2  think we have an RFP out there for a company. As

          3  well as getting agency comment cards, as well as

          4  getting opportunities. And one other piece that I

          5  think we're looking at is sort of what the Chairman

          6  mentioned, which is, is there anything else we can

          7  help you with? Putting that on the website, putting

          8  that on the reports, and saying feedback, does this

          9  get the information that you want?

         10                 We are, over the next year, going to

         11  take a very concerted effort in trying to see what

         12  our customers, what the citizens want. Are they

         13  receiving the services that they want at the right

         14  service level from the agencies as well? So, it is a

         15  very big point, one that we're really making a very

         16  concerted push over the next year to get that

         17  information.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Well, Mr.

         19  Kay, again, because this information is so

         20  important, we appreciate that, and maybe a future

         21  oversight hearing we can get an update on that.

         22                 MR. KAY: Absolutely.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: But thanks

         24  again.

         25                 MR. KAY: Be happy to.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You're welcome,

          5  Senator.

          6                 The Committee report for today, you

          7  know, included certain suggestions that we thought

          8  would be helpful, and we hope that you're going to

          9  take into, that into consideration.

         10                 Do you have any comments yet about

         11  it? Other than telling me that you appreciate all my

         12  suggestions?

         13                 MR. KAY: I always do. I haven't

         14  actually, I'll look at it later today, the Committee

         15  report.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Now, the other

         17  thing I wanted to know, how do we get feedback, I

         18  don't know if it's under your jurisdiction, about

         19  notification, how people feel about being notified

         20  about things going on in their neighborhood?

         21                 As an example, I'll give an example:

         22  The City right now is having hearings throughout the

         23  City about congestion pricing.

         24                 MR. KAY: I'm aware of those hearings.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You are aware?
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          2                 MR. KAY: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Where is the next

          4  hearing?

          5                 MR. KAY: They've completed all five

          6  hearings.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Excellent.

          8                 Now, do you have staff with you here?

          9                 MR. KAY: There are some staff here.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Would you mind if

         11  I brought them up and asked them where the hearings

         12  were at what time in their neighborhood?

         13                 MR. KAY: I'm not sure any of them

         14  were involved in the congestion mitigation hearings.

         15  That was established by the Commission.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: That's not what I

         17  asked. I asked if you would mind whether I had them

         18  come up and asked them where the hearings in the

         19  neighborhood was?

         20                 MR. KAY: I wouldn't mind. Sure.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: That's why I'm

         22  not going to do it.

         23                 I want to tell you that the average

         24  person in New York City has no idea that these

         25  hearings are taking place, where they took place.
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          2  And you don't have to comment on that, because I

          3  know that.

          4                 Now, how do we rate -- you talked

          5  about quality of life statistics, how do we get the

          6  input from people, finding out whether they're

          7  happy, not happy, with the way they know that

          8  government is supposed to be letting them know about

          9  things?

         10                 MR. KAY: That is a very important

         11  piece. And as I mentioned to the Councilman, is that

         12  we are going to be embarking on customer

         13  satisfaction surveys over the next several months,

         14  for which we will need the cooperation of you and

         15  others to promote people to re-respond. Because

         16  obviously we need higher response rates.

         17                 You know, one thing that we may be

         18  looking at, you know, we haven't developed the

         19  questions, is just that, is how is the City

         20  communicating vital information to you, in what

         21  manner, and then, you know, we'll dig down and come

         22  up with recommendations.

         23                 The goal for having a satisfaction

         24  survey is not just to see whether or not people are

         25  happy or not to say we should do changes here, it's
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          2  actually to take that information, bring it back to

          3  the agencies and say, hey, there's a problem here,

          4  let's come up with a plan to fix it, and hopefully

          5  you'll see those ratings go up the next time you do

          6  them.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So, how many hits

          8  do you get a day on this site?

          9                 MR. KAY: On the MNS site?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: No, on My

         11  Neighborhood -- yes. I'm sorry.

         12                 MR. KAY: I think it's 3,000 a month

         13  is what we saw.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Three-thousand a

         15  month?

         16                 MR. KAY: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: How hard would it

         18  be for you to put a question, just like the

         19  newspapers they put, you know, like vote, blah,

         20  blah, blah. I don't expect you to give them a trip

         21  to Florida, but to put a question on this site,

         22  saying were you aware of the congestion pricing

         23  hearing? The date and time of the congestion pricing

         24  hearing, in your borough; that shouldn't be a

         25  difficult thing, right?
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          2                 MR. KAY: I think difficulty -- we

          3  could put any question on a particular website.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes, how hard is

          5  it?

          6                 MR. KAY: To put a question up on the

          7  website?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

          9                 MR. KAY: It's probably not hard at

         10  all.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Not hard at all.

         12                 MR. KAY: The question is if it's an

         13  appropriate question to put on the website.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Is it

         15  appropriate? We can phrase the question any way you

         16  want. Just to ask people. We will be nice. We'll

         17  say, were you aware of the congestion pricing

         18  hearing in your borough, time and date.

         19                 MR. KAY: What I think is important on

         20  the City's website is to check the performance of

         21  City services in City government.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do you want me to

         23  play back what you said five minutes ago on the

         24  tape? You agreed with me moments ago.

         25                 MR. KAY: I would also say, although I
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          2  do believe that the Congestion Mitigation

          3  Commission, which is not a City entity, which is not

          4  a City agency, it's a commission made up of

          5  representatives, where the Mayor's office, the Mayor

          6  only had three appointees, worked that hard to get

          7  that information out there, is not a -- shouldn't be

          8  measured by the Mayor's Office. It's not a City

          9  agency, it's not affiliated with the City in any

         10  way. It's actually a State Governor Commission, and

         11  if there are questions about performance on our City

         12  agencies, I will be more than happy to either put

         13  questions on the website and incorporate that in our

         14  satisfaction survey questions to get a Citywide

         15  response, as well as a community board response,

         16  which is important to us, you know, it's also

         17  relevant to the hearing, and get that information

         18  out there.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: So, we know that

         20  it's not a City agency, but the City I think is

         21  going to have a part in deciding whether to

         22  implement this or not. Would you agree with that?

         23                 MR. KAY: Absolutely.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Well, would you

         25  think that the people deciding that would like to
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          2  know whether the people of the City knew what's

          3  going on or not?

          4                 MR. KAY: I will have conversations

          5  with the Congestion Mitigation Commission to see if

          6  there is some way, I believe there will be more

          7  hearings, on a report that would come out to make

          8  sure that it's publicized in as wide audience as we

          9  possibly can, with enough lead time as we possibly

         10  can.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay.

         12                 I don't know, I think we're going to

         13  have another hearing on this. Not with you. We'll

         14  find out who the person involved. But I want you to

         15  know that I have spoken to my colleagues, and I've

         16  spoken to people who are supposed to be involved in

         17  government. They have no idea that these hearings

         18  are taking place, where they're taking place. And I

         19  would just say that when you want to be sincere and

         20  honest, I'm not talking about you, about bringing

         21  and getting input from citizens in this City about

         22  such an important decision, then that's nice, but

         23  you have to be honest about it. And if we have

         24  hearings and no one knows anything about it, then

         25  that's called playing games with people's minds. So,
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          2  you don't have to answer this question. I'm trying

          3  to goad you into saying something you shouldn't say,

          4  but it has nothing to do with you, other than the

          5  fact that you're a New Yorker and I know you feel as

          6  upset as I do about the fact that no one knows

          7  what's going on with the hearings.

          8                 Do you have any other questions,

          9  Councilman Addabbo?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: No, I don't.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay. Thank you

         12  very much for being here today.

         13                 MR. KAY: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Seeing no

         15  witnesses, this meeting stands in recess, and we

         16  will resume Tuesday, November 13th, 11:00.

         17                 (Hearing concluded at 10:52 a.m.)
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